

Social Monitoring Report

Project Number: 37143-033 August 2017

Period: January 2017 - June 2017

IND: North Eastern States Roads Investment Program (Project 2)

Subproject: Serchhip – Buarpui (MZ02)

Submitted by Project Implementation Unit, Public Works Department, Mizoram

This report has been submitted to ADB by the Project Implementation Unit, Public Works Department, Mizoram and is made publicly available in accordance with ADB's Public Communications Policy (2011). It does not necessarily reflect the views of ADB.

This social monitoring report is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, Management, or staff, and may be preliminary in nature. In preparing any country program or strategy, financing any project, or by making any designation of or reference to a particular territory or geographic area in this document, the Asian Development Bank does not intend to make any judgments as to the legal or other status of any territory or area

Asian Development Bank

pkm/JK.

----- Forwarded by Jagir Kumar/INRM/ADB on 22/08/2017 03:04 PM -----

From:piupwd adb <piupwdadb@gmail.com>To:amahajan.consultant@adb.org, akmotwani@adb.org, jkumar@adb.orgDate:09/08/2017 11:33 AMSubject:Social Monitoring Report up to June 2017

Dear Sir,

I am attaching herewith Social Monitoring Reports for a period up to June, 2017 for the work Upgradation and Improvement of Serchhip to Buarpui Road in the State of Mizoram. This is for favour of your kind information and necessary action.

Regards,

K.Lalsawmvela, Project Director, ADB PIU,PWD Tuikhuahtlang, Aizawl Mizoram - 796001.

Ph: +91 389 2326205(O)/ +91 389 2323347(fax)

PDF

1 Social Report Upto June

2017.pdf

2 Annexure June 2017, pdf



PA 23 AUG 2017 dep wy rad vid evail 23.08.1

L 3073



PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT GOVERNMENT OF MIZORAM

NORTH EASTERN STATE ROADS INVESTMENT PROGRAM SERCHHIP – BUARPUI SUBPROJECT (MZ02) FUNDED BY ADB

SOCIAL MONITORING REPORT UPTO JUNE 2017



CONTENTS

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Resettlement Principles of the Project
- 3. Resettlement Impacts in the Project
- 4. Compensation and relocation in the project
- 5. A. Consultation
 - B. Disclosure
 - C. Grievance
- 6. Conclusion and recommendation
- 7. Annexures:
 - I. Pictures of Consultations
 - II. Pictures of Distribution of leaflets
 - III. Relocated Structures
 - IV. Verification form
 - V. Project Information Pamphlet
 - VI. Project Identity card
 - VII. Compensation Disbursement
 - VIII. Micro Plan
 - IX. Pictures of CPR Owner
 - X. Livelihood training pictures

Social Monitoring Report – North Eastern State Roads Investment Program – Subproject MZ02 (Serchhip – Buarpui)

1 Introduction

The Project Road section (MZ02) between Serchhip to Buarpui has been divided into two sections. These are Part I: Serchhip to Thenzawl (15 km) and Part II: Thenzawl to Buarpui (40 km). In total, the project included improvement and upgradation of 55 km of existing road section. The Project passes through hilly areas and the proposed Right of way taken for the same is 8.7 meter (from the hill side) and at curves, this is increased by 1 meter.

The Project road takes off from NH54 at Sailiamkawn intersection (Km 114.200 near Serchhip) and end at Sialsuk junction on State Highway (length 15.2 km). The second part of the road takes off from km 82 of Aizawl – Lunglei State Highway at Thenzawl and ends at Buarpui (length 39.8 km). The project passes through five villages namely: Serchhip, Sailam, Thenzawl, New Khawlek and Buarpui.

Existing Project road, between Serchhip to Buarpui, is a single lane bituminous road and passes through hilly terrain and dense forest area. In order to simplify the design procedure and improve road construction and minimize impacts, it is proposed for intermediate lane road, the cross section will be constant as under:

- Pavement width of 6.9 m (5.5 m + 0.5 m widening at curves less than radius + 0.9 m paved shoulder on hill side).
- Formation width 7.8 m (6.9 m pavement + 0.9 m unpaved shoulder on valley side).
- Formation cut will be 8.7 m (7.8 m formation width + 0.9 m drain)

If there shall be any straight section of road or curves with radius more than 300 m or combination of both for sections longer than 100 m, the pavement, formation width and cutting shall be reduced by 0.5 (i.e. curve widening) in such sections.

The road improvement works will be limited to this available width in order to minimize the impacts.

2 Resettlement principles of the project:

The following principles are adopted for this project: (i) Screen the project early on to identify past, present, and future involuntary resettlement impacts and risks. (ii) Carry out meaningful consultations with affected persons, host communities, and concerned nongovernment organizations. (iii) Improve, or at least restore, the livelihoods of all displaced persons. (iv) Provide physically and economically displaced persons with needed assistance. (v) Improve the standards of living of the displaced poor and other vulnerable groups, including women, to at least national minimum standards. (vi) Develop procedures in a transparent, consistent, and equitable manner. (vii) Ensure that displaced persons without titles to land or any recognizable legal rights to land are eligible for resettlement assistance and compensation for loss of non-land assets. (viii) Prepare a resettlement plan elaborating on the entitlements of displaced persons, the income and livelihood restoration strategy, institutional arrangements, monitoring and reporting framework, budget, and time bound implementation schedule. (ix) Disclose a draft resettlement plan; including documentation of the consultation process in a timely manner, before project appraisal, in an accessible place and a form and language (s) understandable to affected persons and other stake holders. Disclose the final resettlement plan and its updates to affected persons and other stake holders. (x) Conceive and execute involuntary resettlement as part of a development project or program. (xi) Pay Compensation and provide other resettlement entitlements before

physical or economic displacement. (xii) Monitor and assess resettlement outcomes, their impacts on the standard of living of displaced persons.

In accordance with the R&R measures, all displaced households and persons will be entitled to a combination of compensation packages and resettlement assistance depending on the nature of ownership rights on lost assets and scope of the impacts including socioeconomic vulnerability of the project affected persons and measures to support livelihood restoration if livelihood impacts are envisaged. The affected persons will be entitled to the following five types of Compensation and Assistance packages:

- I. Compensation for the loss of land, crops/trees at their replacement cost.
- II. Compensation for structures (residential/commercial) and other immovable assets at their replacement cost.
- III. Assistance in lieu of the loss of business/wage income and income restoration assistance.
- IV. Assistance for shifting and provision for the relocation site (if required), and
- V. Rebuilding and/or restoration of community resources/facilities.

Affected Persons meeting the cut-off date requirements (for title holders, the date of Section 4.1 of the LAA will be treated as the cut-off date, and for non-title holders the start date of the project census survey), will be entitled to a combination of compensation measures and resettlement assistance, depending on the nature of ownership rights of lost assets and scope of the impact, including social and economic vulnerability of the affected persons. Unforeseen impacts will also be compensated in accordance with the principles.

Type of Loss	Identification of Displaced households	Entitlement	Details
A: LOSS OF L	AND		
A.1 Loss of agricultural land and assets	a) Legal titleholders – Settlement holders	Compensation at Market/replace ment cost and assistance	 a) Land Acquisition for the Project will be as per Land Acquisition Act 1894. b) If the compensation determined by the Competent Authority is less than the "market price/replacement cost" then the difference is to be paid by the EA as assistance. c) APs will be explained the process and their views will be taken into consideration while determining the market/replacement cost. d) APs with traditional title/occupancy right will also be eligible for full compensation for land. e) If the residual plot(s) is (are) not viable, AP would be given the following option, subject to his/her acceptance. Compensation and assistance are to be provided for the entire plot including residual part, if the owner of such land wishes that his/her residual plot and pay the compensation for it. f) Notice to harvest standing seasonal crops. I notice cannot be given,

Entitlement Matrix

ر ر				
			g) h)	compensation for share o crops ill be provided at market value. All fees, stamp duties, taxes and other charges, as applicable under the relevant laws, incurred in the relocation ad rehabilitation process, are to be borne b the EA. Also re-titling shall occur as part of the cost of replacement land. In case of severance due to acquisition of agricultural land, and additional grand of 10% of the amount ill be paid
				for land acquisition.
A.2 Loss of homestead land or vacant plot	a) Legal titleholder / Settlement Holder	Compensation at Market/replace ment cost and	a) b)	Compensation at market/replacement cost or land –for-land where feasible:; If replacement cost is more than the compensation determined by the
(residential and commercial		assistance.		Competent Authority, then difference to be paid by the project authority in the form of "assistance".
land)			c)	DPs with traditional title/occupancy rights will also be eligible for full compensation for land.
			d)	All fees, stamp duties, taxes and other charges, as applicable under the relevant laws, incurred in the relocation and rehabilitation process, are to be borne by the EA.
			e)	A lump sum transfer grant/shifting assistance of Rs. 10,000 (based on the type of house and household asset) per household for shifting households [®] assets and other belonging to the new area.
A.3. Loss of	a) Periodic Patta	Assistance	a)	No compensation for land.
Agriculture Landd.	holders. b) Village Pass holder.		b)	Transitional allowance based on minimum wage rates for semi-skilled labour for three months for each person losing income in the displaced household as a result of impact on land.
			c)	their asset and/or harvest standing crops/fruits.
			d)	In case of crops/fruits, if notice cannot be given, compensation for share of crops will be provided as per Section C of this EM.
	FSRUCTURES			
B.1 Loss of residential structure.	a) Legal Titleholders / settlement of affected structure.	Compensation at market / Replacement cost and assistance.	a)	DP will be provided replacement cost of the residential structure, which will be calculated as per the latest prevailing basic schedule of rates (BSR) without depreciation.

	 a) Leaseholder / Periodic Patta holders b) Village Pass holder 	Compensation (for structure erected) and/or Assistance	 b) c) d) e) a) 	Affected person shall be allowed to take salvaged material from the demolished structure at no costs. A lump sum transfer grant/shifting assistance of Rs. 2000 to Rs. 5000 (based on the type of house and household assets) per household for shifting households" assets and other belonging to the new area. Transitional assistance of Rs 2000 per month per household in the form of grant to cover maximum nine months rental accommodation. All fees, taxes and other registration charges incurred for the replacement structure. Affected person will be provided replacement cost of the residential structure (no compensation for land), which will be calculated as per the latest prevailing basic schedule rate (BSR) without depreciation.
			b) c) d) e)	Affected person shall be allowed to take salvaged material from the demolished structure at no costs. Rental assistance 2000 per month per household for the periodic patta holders as per the prevalent rate in the form of grant to cover maximum three- months rentals. A lump sum transfer grant/shifting assistance of Rs. 10,000 (based on the type of house and household assets) per household for shifting households" assets and other belonging to the new area. All fees, taxes and other registration charges incurred for the replacement structure.
B.2. Loss of Residential cum Commercial (RC) and Commercial structure	a) Legal Titleholder / Settlement holder of affected structure	Compensation at market / Replacement cost and assistance	a) b) c) d)	DP will be provided replacement cost of the structure, which will be calculated as per the latest prevailing basic schedule of rates (BSR) without depreciation.

				grant to cover maximum nine months
				rental accommodation.
			e)	All fees, taxes and other registration
				charges incurred for the replacement
				structure.
		 Compensation 	a)	Affected person will be provided
	Periodic petto bolder	at market/		replacement cost of the residential
	patta holder b) Village Pass	replacement cost for the		structure (no compensation for land), which will be calculated as per the
	holders	structure		latest prevailing basic schedule rates
		 Shifting 		(BSR) without depreciation.
		Assistance	b)	Affected person shall be allowed to
		 Transitional 		take salvaged material from the
		Allowance		demolished structure at no costs. A
		Rental		lump sum transfer grant/shifting assistance of Rs.10,000 based on the
		Assistance		type of house and household assets
				per household for shifting households"
				assets and other belonging to the new
				area. Rental assistance of Rs.2000 per
				month in the form of grant to cover
				maximum three-month rental accommodation. All fees, taxes and
				other registration charges incurred for
				the replacement structure.
	OF CROPS AND TRI		I .	
C.1. Loss of	a) Legal	Compensation	a)	Affected person will be notified and
Crops and Trees	Titleholder/ Settlement	at "replacement		given 60 days advance notice to harvest crops/fruits and remove trees.
11000	holder.	cost	b)	Compensation to be paid by the DC at
	b) Periodic Patta		,	(the rate) replacement cost estimated
	Holder			by: i) the Forest Department for timber
	c) Village Council Pass			trees: ii) State Agriculture Extension
				, 3
				Department for crops: iii) and
	holder			Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial
			c)	Department for crops: iii) and
			C)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value
			c)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing
				Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only.
				Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop
				Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only.
				Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season"s harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to
			d)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation.
			d)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and
			d)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and fruit tress calculated at replacement
			d)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and fruit tress calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual
			d)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and fruit tress calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of
	holder		d) e)	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season"s harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and fruit tress calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of crops/trees.
	holder DF ATHER ASSETS	· · ·	d) e) te k	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and fruit tress calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of crops/trees.
D: LOST C D.1. Loss of Other assets	holder DF ATHER ASSETS	· ·	d) e) te k	Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season"s harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. Compensation for perennial crops and fruit tress calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of crops/trees.

E-LOSS (DF LIVELIHHOOD S	Replacement cost for the structure • Shifting Assistance	b)	structure (no compensation for land), which will be calculated as per the latest prevailing basic schedule of rated (BSR) without depreciation. Affected person shall be allowed to take salvaged material from the demolished structure at no costs. Lump sum transfers grant/shifting assistance of Rs. 10,000 (based on the type of house and household assets) per households" assets and other belonging to the new area.
E.1. Loss of primary source of income for the titleholders	a) Titleholders/ Settlement	Rehabilitation Assistance for income restoration	a) b)	Transitional allowance equivalent 1,000 days of Minimum Agricultural Wage (MAW) in the state at the time of Section 4 notification under LA Act if the residual land is not viable or equivalent to 750 days of MAW income when the residual land is viable. In case of households, losing 10% or more of their productive assets (income generating), training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs. 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly paid by the Project to the training institute. Payment of training would be made only to Recognized and accredited vocational training skills providers / institute, independent from any of the project stakeholders (including IA and EA).
E.2. Loss of primary	 a) Titleholders holders losing income through business a) Leaseholders/ 	Rehabilitation Assistance for income restoration Transitional Assistance	a) b)	Transitional allowance will be paid to each displace household based on six months of average income earned from the affected business. In case of households, losing 10% or more of their productive assets (income generating), training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs. 10,000 per displaced household. Payment of training would be made only to Recognized and accredited vocational training skills providers/institutes, independent from any of the project stakeholders (including IA and EA). Transitional allowance will be paid to each displaced household based on

source f	periodic Patta		minimum wage rates for semi-skilled
income for the leaseholders/ Periodic patta holder	holder		 labour for three months. b) Training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs. 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly paid by the Project to the training institute. Payment of training would be made only to Recognized and accredited vocational training skills providers/institutes, independent from any of the project stakeholders (including IA and EA)
E.3. Loss of primary source of income of Village pass holders	a) Village Pass holders	Transitional Assistance	 a) Transitional allowance will be paid to each displaced household based on minimum wage rates for semi-skilled labour for three months. Training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs. 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly to the training institute. Payment of training would be made only to Recognized and accredited vocational training skills providers/institutes, independent from any of the project stakeholders (including IA and EA). Employment opportunity for such APs in the project construction work, if so desired by them.
F: LOSS O	F COMMON ROPE	RTY RESSOURC	ES
F.1. Loss of Common Property Resources	Affected community/ Government Institution responsible for the structure	Restoration and/ or Reconstruction Assistance	Cash compensation or replacement/ restoration of the affected community facilities (including temples, shrines, public water stand posts etc) in consultation with the affected community.
G: ADDITION	AL SUPPORT TO V	ULNERABLE	
G.1.	Households	Lump sum	a) Additional one-time lump sum
Additional assistance to vulnerable groups	categorized as vulnerable	assistance	 assistance of Rs. 10,000 per household to vulnerable households. This will be over and above the other assistance/s given as per this framework. b) Vulnerable households could be given priority in employment as labour in the project construction activities.
H.1.	Owner/	Cash	a) The contractor shall bear the cost of
H.I. Temporary impact during	Titleholder/ traditional rights of the affected	compensation for loss of income	 a) The contractor shall bear the cost of any impact on structure or land due to movement of machinery during construction or establishment of

construction	plot community	potential		construction plant.
like			b)	Compensation for standing crops and
disruption of				trees as per the market rate.
normal			c)	Restoration of land to its previous or
traffic,				better quality.
damage to			d)	The contractor will negotiate a rental
adjacent				rate with the owner for all temporary
parcel of				use of land outside proposed RoW.
land/assets			e)	All temporary use of lands outside
due to				proposed RoW to be through written
movement of				approval of the landowner and
machinery				contractor.
and plant site			f)	Location of construction camps by
for contractor				contractor in consultation with the
etc.				PWD.
H.2. Any				oject will be documented and mitigated
unanticipated	based on the spirit	t of the principles u	ipon	in this policy in this policy framework.
adverse				
impact due				
to project				
intervention				

3 Resettlement Impacts in the Project:

Impact assessment has been applied in the project road. Greater emphasis has been placed on IA during the planning, design, construction and operation of proposed road projects critically analyzing, predicting and evaluating the future social and economic effects of proposed policy, program and project decisions and actions on the well-being of the people, and their businesses, institutions and communities with a goal to protect and enhance the quality of life by ensuring that the potential socio-economic impacts are minimized.

The impacts on people, their community and way of life can occur during project planning, construction, and the "operational" phase when the roadway is in use. The impact results from the introduction of specific project characteristics up-gradation with paved shoulder NH standards and the local community and individual's response.

For widening of Serchhip – Buarpui Road **13.96 ha** of additional land is acquired.

This Jhum land which is used for traditional Jhum cultivation. Shifting cultivation (Jhum) in Mizoram is on a periodic cycle on the hilly slopes, over a traditional 8-year cycle. With the increasing pressure on land, the Jhum cycle has come down to 3 or 4 years. Loss of Jhum land will have impact on agriculture production.

Under the road-development project land use pattern of the acquired land and the existing vacant land will change permanently. This will be a direct impact on land use pattern but side by side it will improve the socio economic condition of the area, *which is a positive impact.* Due to the development of the new roads, there are chances of economic development and in the long run. There is a chance of ribbon development along the roads in most of the commercial areas which will have additional impact on the land use pattern of the project area in the long run.

Enough care has been taken during design by realigning the built up area to minimize *Impact due to Displacement of Residents, Displacement of Businesses and Community Services, Impacts on Residents, Impacts on Businesses and Community Services, Impacts on the Community.*

Compensation for Land and assistance to the community due to this proposed alignment is substantially completed and some compensation is in process till the reporting month end.

No. of households impacted	As per Resettlement Plan	Revised based on NGO verification
Land	171	224
Residential structure	22	30
Commercial structure	1	1
Residential + commercial	3	1
structure		
Other affected household	31	0
Total households	228	256
Total affected persons	1379	1225

Table - 1: Summary of Project Impacts

After verification done by the NGO, number of Affected Households came up to 256, CPRs (12 in nos.) are included in these total number of households.

Table - 2: Status of affected househo	de
Table - 2. Status of affected househo	us

No. of households impacted	As per Rese	ettlement Plan	Revised ba verification	Revised based on NGO verification		
	Titleholder	Non-titleholder	Titleholder	Non-titleholder		
Land	76	95	86	140		
Residential structure	15	7	18	10		
Commercial structure	1	0	1	0		
Residential + commercial	1	2	1	0		
structure						
Other affected household	0	31	0	0		
Total households	93	135	106	150		
Total affected persons	651	728	512	713		

The numbers of impacted households were increased in Land, Residential Structure and Commercial structure, but the number of impacted in Residential + Commercial was reduced due to the discontinue of business in two buildings. The average size of the impacted families was 4.78.

Table - 3: Land requirement in the project

Type of land	As per Resettlement Plan (area in ha)	Revised based on NGO verification (area in ha)
Land settlement certificate holder	1.14	0.45
Periodic patta holder	4.97	3.13
Village council pass holder	10.54	9.21
Government land	0.00	0.07
Community land	0.00	0.11
Forest land	0.00	0.99
Absentee Household	2.65	0
Total land	19.30	13.96

Land requirement in the project is reduced after verification and acquisition because in certain areas impact area falls within road reserve area in Land Pass issued by Revenue Department, Mizoram. In some cases, width of the road is already big and impact is lesser.

Vulnerability category	As per Resettlement Plan	Revised based on NGO verification
Without legal title	0	0
Scheduled Tribe	65 %	244 (All PAHs are ST) 100%
Below poverty line	16 %	24 (9.8%)
Elderly	16 %	93 (38%)
Woman headed house	3 %	23 (9.4%)
Landless	0	0
Total	100 %	244

Table - 4: Vulnerable households impacted by the project

All Affected Persons were from Mizo Community and they are Schedule Tribes. Amongst these 244 Schedule tribes, 24 Households were found in the category of Below Poverty Line (BPL), 93 Households were found above 60 years of age and 23 Households were found Women Headed Households.

Table - 5: Impacted community property	Table - 5:	Impacted	community	property
--	------------	----------	-----------	----------

Community property	As per Resettlement Plan	Revised based on NGO verification
Land	12	6
Structure	19	6
Trees	0	0
Add any other	0	0
Total	31	12

12 numbers of Community property were found impacted. Out of these CPRs 6 were land only, 2 School Buildings, 1 Church Steps, 1 Anganwadi building, 1 Community Hall and 1 Urinal. Anganwadi Building and Community Hall was displaced and they are already relocated now.

4 Compensation and relocation in the project:

Table - 6 : The progress of land acquisition

village name		progress of land acquisition in sq. mt.							
	Total target	Reporting period	%	Progress to date	%	Balanc e in sq.mt	%		
1 Serchhip	16294.19	0	0	16294.19	100	0	0		
2 Sailam	719.81	0	0	719.81	100	0	0		
3 Thenzawl	5550.21	102.94	1.85	5550.21	100	0	0		
4 New Khawlek	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
5 Buarpui	13330.5	0	0	13330.5	100	0	0		
Total	35894.71	102.94	1.85	35894.71	100	0	0		

In all 5 villages, all lands needed for the project were fully acquired and compensation was fully disbursed. The three remaining un-disbursed AP's are the land owners of Village Council Pass Holders, their crops and trees only are compensated as per the rules of the State Government.

The total target in Land acquisition is reduced here in this report, because, in the previous report, the total target was 144391.50 sq.m as we have included the land area of the Village Council Pass holders which the Government does not pay the cost of the land but the crops and trees within the area. Thus, we have removed the land area from this report as the VC pass lands are not compensated.

Type of loss	No. of households						
	Total target	Reporting period	%	Progress to date	%	Balance in no.	%
Land	226	4	1.76	222	98.23	4	1.76
Residential structure	28	0	0	28	100	0	0
Commercial structure	1	0	0	1	100	0	0
Residential+ commercial structure	1	0	0	1	100	0	0
Other assets	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Total	256	4	0.68	252	99.55	4	0.68

Table - 7: Payment of compensation to households

98.43 % of Compensation is already disbursed and 1.56 % is still remaining. Their land needs to be re-assessed and it is under process and they will be receiving their compensation within the next reporting period.

Table - 8: Compensation Amount paid to the households & CPRs.

Name of Village	No. of HHs	Amount paid to Households	No. of HHs	Amount Unpaid to Households	No. of CPRs	Amount Paid to CPRs	No. of CPRs	Amount Unpaid to CPRs
Serchhip	62	13,435,635.00	0	0.00	0	0.00	0	0.00
Sailam	2	514,997.00	0	0.00	0	0.00	0	0.00
Thenzawl	70	7,809,382.00	1	16,060.00	4	378,932.00	2	14,780.00
New khawlek	19	3,717,241.00	0	0.00	2	1,625,428.00	0	0.00
Buarpui	89	22,913,971.00	1	1,387.00	4	1,793,276.00	0	0.00
Total:	242	48,391,226.00	2	17,447.00	10	3,797,636.00	2	14,780.00

The total amount of Compensation to be disbursed is Rs. 52,221,089.00. A total of Rs. 48,391,226.00 is already paid to the households and Rs. 3,797,636.00 is paid to the CPRs.

Table - 9: Payment of assistance to households

			No.	of househo	lds		
Type of assistance	Total target	Reporti ng period	%	Progres s to date	%	Balance in no.	%
Transitional Assistance for affected residential, commercial and residential cum commercial structures (LSC titleholder)	22	0	0	22	100	0	0
Transfer/ shifting assistance for Commercial Structure (LSC/PP holders).	2	0	0	2	100	0	0
Rental Assistance for residential, commercial and residential cum commercial structures (PP & VC Pass holders).	17	0	0	17	100	0	0
Transfer/ shifting assistance for Homestead Land (Titleholders).	24	0	0	23	95.84	1	4.16
Transfer/ shifting assistance for structural impacts (LSC holders).	21	0	0	21	100	0	0
Transfer/ shifting assistance for structural (PP/VC holders).	16	0	0	16	100	0	0
Transitional allowance for affected agriculture land (VC pass holders).	121	0	0	120	99.18	1	0.82
Transitional allowance for affected business (Periodic Patta holders).	1	0	0	1	100	0	
Transitional allowance for affected business (Titleholders).	1	0	0	1	100	0	0
Income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs Choice (titleholder / PP Holder/ Village Council Pass Holder)	2	2	100	2	100	0	0
Vulnerable households	244	0	0	243	99.59	1	0.41
Total	471	2	9.09	468	99.51	3	0.49

Table - 10: Assistance Amount Paid to Households

Name of Village	Amount paid to Households	Amount Unpaid to Households
Serchhip	1,586,500.00	0.00
Sailam	52,500.00	0.00
Thenzawl	1,808,000.00	30,000.00
New khawlek	552,500.00	0
Buarpui	2,272,500.00	32,500.00
Total:	6,272,000.00	62,500.00

The total Amount of Assistance to be disbursed is Rs. 6,334,500.00. An amount of Rs. 6,272,000.00 is already paid to the households. The remaining assistance will be paid as soon as their land value which was needed to re-asses is paid to them.

Table - 11: Relocation of APs

Type of structure	No. of households								
	Total target	Reporting period	%	Progres s to date	%	Balance in no.	%		
Residential	21	1	4.76	17	80.95	4	19.05		
Commercial	1	0	0	1	100	0	0		
Residential+ commercial structure	1	0	0	1	100	0	0		
Total	23	1	4.35	19	82.61	4	17.39		

The total number of structures to be dismantled was 23. 19 are already relocated. The remaining 4 are un-dismantled yet, all of them belong in the last affected village and they will be dismantling their structures soon.

The number of displaced structures are reduced here in this report, because, the 7 (seven) partially affected buildings were accidentally counted and included in the previous report. These partially affected structures do not affect the whole building and do not require relocation.

Table - 12: Status of compensation payment and relocation of CPRs

Type of CPRs	Number						
	Total target	Reporting period	%	Progress to date	%	Balance in no	%
Churches	7	0	0	5	71.42	2	28.57
Gov"t	3	0	0	3	100	0	0
NGO [®] s	2	0	0	2	100	0	0
Total	12	0	0	10	83.33	2	16.66

12 numbers of CPRs are affected in the project. Out of these 12, 6 were land only, 1 Church steps, 2 School Buildings, 1 Anganwadi Building, 1 Community Hall and a Urinal. The two displaced Buildings - Anganwadi building and Community Hall were already relocated. The two remaining CPRs have not received their Compensation due to reassessment of their land, it is under process and they are expected to receive within the next reporting period. All CPRs which were needed to be relocated were already relocated, the remaining two CPRs are a piece / portion of the Church Land only and it will not affect their activities.

5 A. Consultation :

In order to engage with the community and enhance public understanding on the Project and address the issues pertaining to resettlement, various sections of Affected Persons and other stakeholders were consulted various times. The opinion of the stakeholders and their perceptions were obtained during these consultations.

All relevant aspects of the Project, its components, anticipated benefits and impacts on the community, the Resettlement and Rehabilitation Policy and the Entitlement Matrix laid down in the Resettlement plan, the mechanism and arrangements for availing their compensation and assistance were discussed with the affected communities. Proper utilization of the assistance and Grievance mechanism was also discussed in various discussions. So far, consultations were held in Buarpui Village and New Khawlek Village in this reporting period. A participant constitutes Affected Persons, stakeholders and village council leaders. A total of 43 participate in these consultations, 35 were males and 8 were females. In Buarpui village 28 persons participates in the consultation meeting and in New Khawlek village 15 persons participates in the meeting. The main issues discussed in the meetings are given here below in the table.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

Place : Information Hall, Buarpui

Date: 04.05.2017

SI/No.	Questions	Given Responses
1	Regarding compensation, some were given and some were not, why did we were left out?	District Collector prepared the assessment and land which was not required for the project road was not given compensation.
2	We heard that ADB funded 80% and MDoNER funded 20%, then how much amount is funded by the State Gov"t?	The contract agreement amount is Rs.204.51 crore, out of which ADB / GOI funded Rs.123.07 crores and the rest by the State Gov"t.
3	Public Property, entir na ["] n Step te hi pawisa pek ani lova, engtia tihtur nge? Public Property like Steps was not compensated, and what would be the next step?	As per Resettlement Plan, there is a plan for restoration of such public utility in consultation with the community; hence, such properties which may be damaged during the construction will be restored after excavation of earthwork.
4	YMA (NGO) Leaders have mentioned that they are willing to lend a helping hand whenever necessary.	We are very thankful to Local NGO"s for their support.
5	If Buarpui "YMA Run" is acquired we feel that the grade of the road will be better, can the alignment be changed?	This area has been thoroughly checked and surveyed. If "YMA Run" is acquired, technically, gradient of the road will be worse, that"s why it is left untouched.
6	Some said that for dumping area, compensation could not be claimed anymore, could you clarify the reasons?	Area needed for dumping sites were already acquired and at present, there is no need of acquiring additional dumping ground.
7	When we received compensation from DC's Office, Serchhip, 15% cess was remitted to the Gov"t, why did 15% cess was cut from us?	DC's Office, Serchhip had remitted 15% cess to the Gov't from Periodic Patta and House Pass. It will be clearer on what bases of Gov't order they remitted if DC's Office, Serchhip were asked.
8	Is the rate of land similar for Periodic	Village Council Pass do not have

	Patta and Village Council Pass?	land value, but Periodic Patta has and the land holders were given the land value as well as per LA Act 1894. During the assessment period, R&R Plan was not yet approved in which Village Council Pass and Periodic Patta holders do not entitled any land value.
9	When is the due date for completion of the project?	Due date for completion was scheduled on 2 nd December 2017, but, due to several reasons, a contractor applied Extension of Time (EOT) and gets extended up to 30 th April 2019.
10	Peoples from Asia Indigenous People"s Pact / Zo Indigenous Forum came recently and said that we (c/o Mr. Sainghinglova Sailo) are entitled to receive Shifting Assistance for 9 months @2000 as our house needs to be dismantled, could you clarify on that?	Mr.Sainghinglova Sailo land and building was acquired for the project; they have House Pass and entitled Shifting Assistance for 3 months @2000 as per approved RP Entitlement Matrix. They have already received it. Shifting Assistance of 9 months @2000 is for LSC holders only.
11	If our house is not safe or endangered due to excavation of our neighbouring land, what measures would be taken?	If such thing happens, it will be protected by construction of Breast Wall.
12	Our land is not acquired and do not receive compensation, I am to inform you that we will not allow them to touch our land. Is there any provision for compensation	Your land have been checked and surveyed and will not be required for the project as the proposed alignment do not touch your land. Yes, Such structures which were
	of small structures like Pigsty, Poultry shed and garage?	needed for the project were already acquired and compensated.
14	Could you start the construction activity from Buarpui Village (Section III) i.e. end of the project?	The matter had already raised by the concern MLA, which was even discussed with the contractor. But as per our contract agreement/milestone the work is to be started from section-I up to section-III. The contractor found it inconvenient to shift his heavy machineries to the end of the project, so, construction work is in progress as per the contract agreement.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

Place : VCP Residence, New Khawlek

Date: 05.05.2017

SI/No.	Questions	Given Responses		
1	Could you dump earth spoil in our proposed public playground?	Designated Dumping Site have already been acquired, but for the interest of the public, if no extra cost is involved in doing so, the contractor is willing to dump the earth spoil on proposed public playground which was already discussed with them.		
2	If our house is not safe or endangered due to excavation of our neighbouring land, what measures would be taken?	If such thing happens, it will be protected by construction of Breast Wall		
3	Our land is not acquired and do not receive compensation, I am to inform you that we will not allow them to touch our land.	u surveyed and will not be required for		
4	We have heard about vocational training and are we all getting this training?	As per approved RP Entitlement matrix, this training could be given only to Loss of Primary Source of income and were already given to the entitled persons on the project.		
5	In our Junction at curve, Residential house at downhill side is not compensated, is the width of road wide enough without it.	At this portion, the uphill site was already compensated and small retaining structure will be constructed at the down hill site, so without touching the residential house the proposed width of road could be attained.		
6	Secretary, Village Council assured the Team that none of the villagers will make any hindrance on the project as they are eagerly waiting for a good road.	We are very thankful to the Villagers for the support we have got.		

B. Disclosure of Resettlement Plan:

Entitlement Matrix and Grievance Redressal Mechanism in Mizo language were distributed among the Affected Persons in all project affected villages, and re-distributed in two villages Buarpui and New Khawlek on May 2017 and also uploaded in pwdmizoram.gov.in.

D. Grievance:

Grievance Redress Mechanism was established to receive, evaluate and facilitate the resolution of affected people"s concerns, complaints and grievance about the social and environmental performance at the level of the project. The GRM aimed to provide a timebound and transparent mechanism to voice and resolve social and environmental concerns linked to the project. The Project –specific GRM is not intended to bypass the government"s own redress process, rather it is intended to address affected people"s concerns and complaints promptly, making it readily accessible to all segments of the affected people and is scaled to the risks and impacts of the project.

The project information leaflet which includes information on the GRM was widely distributed disseminated throughout the corridor. There are three tiers of GRM; the First tier is the fastest and most accessible mechanism for resolution of grievances. The Resettlement Officer in the PIU is designated as the key officer for grievance redress. Resolution of complaints will be done within seven working days.

The second tier of GRM is referring the unresolved issue (with written documentation) to the Grievance Redress Committee (GRC). The GRC was established at the PWD level headed by the Chief Engineer. The GRC consists of the following persons, Chief Engineer, Project Director, representative of the affected persons, and representative of the local Deputy Commissioners" office. A hearing will be called with the GRC, if necessary where the affected person can present his/her concern/issues. The GRC will suggest corrective measures at the field level and assign clear responsibilities for implementing its decision within fifteen (15) working days. If unsatisfied with the decision, the existence of the GRC will not impede the complainant"s access to the Government"s judicial or administration remedies.

The Third tier of GRM is in the event that a grievance cannot be resolved directly by the PIU's (first tier) or GRC (second tier), the affected person can seek alternative redress in the appropriate court of law. The PIUs or GRC will be kept informed by the district, municipal or national authority. Nonetheless, the DP is free to access the country's legal system at any time and stage, not only after following the Project GRM.

Grievance type on	No. received	No. resolved	No. pending or referred to higher level
Measurement of asset	0	0	0
Compensation of land	0	0	0
Compensation of structure	0	0	0
Tree/crop compensation	0	0	0
Assistance	0	0	0
Others	0	0	0

Table: 13 - Status of Grievance

6 Conclusion and recommendation:

As per the social safeguard policy of the Asian Development Bank, the Project has its own objectives of avoiding involuntary resettlement wherever possible, by means of adopting appropriate technical measures and effective consultations. Timely compensation and assistance was necessary and gave it to 98.82 % and 98.77 % of the total Affected Persons, the remaining APs also will be given soon.

Two Affected Households, their Income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs Choice (titleholder / PP Holder) were given to them. They have chosen Weaving as their income generating skill and they have finished their training. Their training pictures are given in the annexure.

The numbers of relocating structures are slowly increasing and most of the structures are already dismantled and their relocating structures are under construction, all of them are expected to be relocated soon. Each AP^{*}s have alternate residing place during the construction of their new house.

The supplementary award is now approved and plans to be disbursed in the month of July 2017.

I. Pictures of Consultations









II. Pictures of Distribution of leaflets









III. Relocated Structures

Sl.n	Relocated Structures	Sl.n	Relocated Structures
0		0 2	
3		4	
5		6	
7		8	

Sl.n	Relocated Structures	Sl.n	Relocated Structures
<u> </u>		0 10	
11		12	
13		14	
15		16	

Sl.no	Relocated Structures	Sl.no	Relocated Structures
17		18	
19			

IV. Verification form

04	fatters hame.	hildren 7	-								
1			Paul In-	test int	Here stillage	Hare U	10.000		11 10. 200		124303
et Lensing	Silulian.	Salen.' Vergitia	ICENWSVI HEATSTR		MOT NUT	THA TANK	R y	Maria	Rue are	15	L
a Atlana	NUTLEYES	Faile Miles			THE PARTY NAMES	ans.		SOLE.	gia	the l	E
aranga Ana tangan Ana tangan	Origination	Tield Well.			Not arrest	WYET	A A	IEAUX	8.14	陈	Y
velulana	arrands.	These series,	LSC THE GREENTLIN S of shirts		Bureau.	Value		- Milera	Trice	杨	8
antata :	Labhertheres	Ann mo	PTia So st 1985		Hit withit	wage:		JUDEA	Sertin	: Kity	R
unversion.	Auto Destroy of	Torn Sent. Thropad	All within the the the the		And an Tell	AC. 14394		(CACON	24.24	4.ch	- Children
Cartanets To Sangla Kittine		Vergin. Northwi	Red writer in the		107 44000 10 10 10 100 10 100			10.000	BW.	Kar	1
AUGENSIAN	- Station II	rivel land. There and	vt Pau		Nor Witten An Ort Appropriet	Per .	1 a 1 H 1	- App	X	大大	-
(James	Chevrolinian	buur erry. Thermoel	Not Armin in the Associated		Net Group in the Assessment	Settle	上の上の間間	0	and which and	南西	- A

Census and Verification of Asset Questionnaires ADB Project

PART: 1 - ASSET INFORMATION

GENERAL

A. Questionnaire No:	B . Photo no.:	•••••
C. Village:	D. District:	E. Side 1. Left
2. Right		
F. Name:	G. Ph.no :	
		••••••
I. Permanent Address:		
J. Occupation:		•••••
-	izo-1; Chakma-2; Hindi-3; Others-4, in case	of others
specify.)		
L. Social Category (Tick)		
1. SC 2. ST 3. OBC 4. Gener	ral 5. Others (specify)	
M. Religious Category (Tick)		
1. Christian 2. Muslim 3. Hir	ndu 4. Other (specify)	
N. Vulnerability Status of the Hous	ehold ((Tick):	
A. Is it a woman headed ho	usehold? 1. Yes 2. No	
B. Is it headed by physically	y/mentally challenged person? 1. Yes 2.	No
C. Is it a household Below F	Poverty Line (BPL) 1. Yes 2. No, If Yes BPL	L Card
No		

D. Is it an Elderly Headed household? 1. Yes 2. No O. Monthly income of the family in (Total of Q.No. 36) Rs..... DETAILS OF LAND 1. Ownership of the Land :- 1. Private 2. Government 3. Religious 4. Community 5. Others 1. Irrigated 2. Non-Irrigated 3. Barren 4. Forest 5. Other 2. Type of Land :-3. Use of Land :-1.Cultivation 2. Orchard 3. Residential 4. Commercial 5. Forestation 6. Others 7. No Use/ Barren 1. Titleholder (Pvt Owner) 2. Customary Right 3. Encroacher 4. 4. Status of Ownership :-Squatter 5. Total Land Holding (in Acre) DETAILS OF STRUCTURES 6. Any structure in the Affected Land 1. Yes...... 2. No...... 7. Area of the affected structure (in Square Meter) 8. Area of the total structure (in Square Meter) 9. Distance of structure from center line of the road (in mtr.)..... 10. Type of Construction of the Structure 1. Temporary (buildings with mud/brick/wood made walls, thatched/tin roof) 2. Semi-Permanent (buildings, with tiled roof and normal cement floor) 3. Permanent (with RCC, Single / Double storey building) 11. Use of the Structure (Tick appropriate code from below) A. Residential Structure 1.House 2. Hut 3. Kitchen 4.Other B. Commercial Structure 4. Shops 5. Hotel 6. Small Eatery 7. Kiosk 8. Farm House 9. Workshop 10. Vendors 11. Com. Complex 12. Industry 13. Restaurant 14. Others..... C. Mixed Structure 18. Residential-cum-Commercial Structure D. Community Structure 19. Comm. Center 20. Club 21. Trust 22. Memorials 23. Other.... E. Religious Structure 24 Mosque, 25. Shrine 26. Burial 27. Temple 28. Other... F. Government Structure 29. Govt. Office 30. Hospital 31. School 32. College 33. Other G. Other Structure 34. Boundary Wall 35. Foundation 36. Cattle Shed 37. Well/Tube Well 38. R/wall 39. Memorial stone 40. Step 41. Pvt. Grave 1. Legal Titleholder 2. Customary Right 3. Encroacher 4. 12. Status of the Structure :-Squatter

RESETTLEMENT AND REHABILITATION OPTION

13. Willing to shift: 1. Voluntarily2. Non-voluntarily14. Assistance Option1. Cold Delay

- 1. Self Relocation
- 2. Cash for Land loss
- 3. Cash for House/ Shop loss
- 4. Project Assistance

15. Income Restoration Assistance (The most preferred option)

- 1. Employment Opportunities in Construction work
- 2. Assistance/ Loan from other ongoing development scheme
- 3. Vocational Training
- 4. Others (specify
-)

16. Other Support from Project (Specify)

17. Possession of Material /Assets (Please Record Numbers)

Televis ion	Compu ter	Rad io	Refriger ator	Teleph one			Vehicles			Cooki ng	Any Other
					Cycl es	Two Whee ler	Three - Whee ler	Four Whee ler	Bus / Tru ck	Gas	(speci fy)

18. Live Stock Assets (Please Record Numbers)

Classification	Cows	Pig	Sheep	Goats	Poultry	Others
Give Number						

19. Health Seeking behavior

1	Has any of your family members suffered from Malaria? If yes, please specify type	If yes, who suffered:	Code : Men - 1, Women - 2 Both- 3, Boy child- 4 Girl child - 5, Both children - 6
3	of treatment taken? Type of measures available in order to prevent from malaria		
4	Which is the nearest formal medical facility available?		
5	Have you heard about HIV/AIDS:	Yes 1; No - 2	
6	If yes, what is the source? Newspaper - 1; TV- 2; radio- 3; NGO camp- 4; Govt. camp - 5;		
7	How do you see HIV/AIDS Patient?		
8	Has anyone conducted HIV/AIDS Awareness in your Village?		

Part II

SOCIOECONOMIC DETAILS

35. Name of the Head of the Household.....

36. Number of family members Total......Male......Female.....

Details of Family Members

SI. No	Name of Persons	Relationship with Head of the Household	Sex (M/F)	Age	Marital Status	Educatio nal Qualifica tion	Main Occupation	Monthly Income	Other Occup ation	Mont hly Inco me
1										
2										
3										
4										
5										
6										
7										
8										
9										
10										
11										
12										

Marital Status: Married-1; Unmarried-2; Divorcee-3; Separate-4; Widowed-5;
Educational Qualification: Illiterate-1; Primary Schooling-2; Upper Primary Schooling-3; High School-4;
Graduate-5; Post-Graduate-6; Technical-7
Occupation : Cultivator-1: Agricultural Labourer-2; Daily Wage Earner-3; Salaried-4; Business- 6; Other-7; in case of
others specify.

Signature & Name of a person Answering the Survey:

(Name & Signature of the Investigator).....

Date:

V. Project Information Pamphlet





VI. Project Identity card

	SERCHHI	P-HUARPU	ADS INVESTMEN	4202Y)		
ENTITLEMENT PHOT	in series	VEY NO.	IO NO.		LAGE	DATE OF ISSUE OF IL
M202	11.		17/0062/120	THE	RAWL	
Name	LAL	RIMAWII				-
Present address	The	nzawi Kan	an Veng			0
Permanent Address	The	nzawi Kan	an Veng			(22)
Income/Month						1 p
Wulnerable.	Yes	Category.	57	Caste	ST	TA YESTAR
Acquired Area		goome fla Vilage	817.76 5q. ft		-	
Compensation Amount (Rs)	135,	945.00			Total Amount (Rs)	135,945.00
DIGNATURE OF THE AP			R	marin	-13	
IGNATURE OF THE NGO CONSULTANT			10	Killa		
MATURE OF THE VERIFYING OFFICER			1	not -	20	

VII. Compensation Disbursement





VIII. Micro Plan

				INDIVID	UAL MUCKO	PUNN FOR	TITLE HOLD	(A ESCAD	HIP DUA	APU: M20	17	_	_			_
		_		170222	0		HIALAN	MIUAIA	- COMPLET	SERCHERP	-	_	_	_		-
			-	AUDA	LE SERORI	P. 1	r	1	CONTRACT	PERCHER.	-		-	_		
-	144	-	And starting	Country in the	10-40-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10	Section.	H	Salahar Papaning Papaning	Seat State	and the second			Tarita	-	1	-
10.0	10 10 10	1.811	14	16	3	×	. (+)				4				11	*
2.00	Discounters LLCN	and the second second	347	3411		. And .	-	4.0	11	Stary			head	181.5	-	
			-	-	-		l	<u>. </u>			1			-	-	-
Pluring such of Title Horizon			E			1	Sandy Area	A Remote the	famin'	Di setto di	In Summer	Tomat	Dama	Income and	1 July	
0.000	-	-	(e)	Name of Street Street		Anne	-	-	- Bagator		the states	Adamson .	- Pilling	atomic .	Andrea !!	100.0
	1000		1.1	Calentine		9	<i>p</i> .		(faire)	. P.		4		1.	1.000	349
and the second se		1.2	har			•		1.00108	_	-	-	-	-	-	_	
				Summer Series	-		- 1	(F)	- Later		-		-			
180	10151.8			Statement -	-	-		1	transf.			-	-		1	
1000					-					-						
100	ATTAS						_		-				-	11	n	-
100	2 hoolis	See.	-	-	_	_			_				-	-	-	-
1000	All Martin	200				_				-			-	-	-	-
100	Marine V.		-	-		_			_	-			-	-	-	-
			-						-							1.
1 -1 -1			-									-	1		1	11
t as yes						-	Surfaces and all approx.						TT'N ANT			
	Sector Sector	i province in the second se	and the second s	and Separate & Dave		and by	and the	1000 m 100 m			11	1 . In bissens				
-	1.844	-	100			Contraction in the		1		1	1	1	1	100	1	- 201
-		Nitter in		all and	or playing	and the second se	Sugar Saint		hine .	VIII.	ALL AND A				-	
	Legends	Santana -			as angles as		and and a little of the little				distante ?		a hele			

IX. Pictures of CPR Owner

SI. no	Name of CPR	Incharge/owner	SI. no	Name of CPR	Incharge/owner
1	Presbyterian Church, Kanan Veng		2	Centenary Hall, Venglai Kohhran	2
3	Gov't PS-IV		4	Baptist Church of Mizoram	
5	UPC (Mizoram)		6	Presbyterian Church, Dinthar Veng	
7	Information Cum Cultural Hall		8	Baptist Church of Mizoram	
9	UPC (NEI)		10	Community Hall	R
11	Anganwadi Centre		12	Government Standard Middle School	

X. Livelihood Training Pictures: Weaving.

